
 

 
 

 

 

Barham Park Trust Committee 
 

Tuesday 26 September 2023 at 10.00 am 
Conference Hall - Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, 
Wembley, HA9 0FJ 
 

Please note this will be held as a physical meeting which all Committee 
members will be required to attend in person. 
 

The meeting will be open for the press and public to attend or 
alternatively can be followed via the live webcast. The link to follow 
proceedings via the live webcast is available HERE 
 

Membership: 
 
Members:    Substitute Members: 
Councillors:    Councillors: 
 
M Butt (Chair)   Farah 
Tatler (Vice-Chair)   Grahl 
Donnelly-Jackson   Nerva 
Knight     vacancy 
Krupa Sheth 
 
(Please note the agenda was republished on 19 September 2023 to reflect a change in 
membership on the Trust Committee with Councillor Knight having been appointed to replace 
Councillor Mili Patel) 

 
 

For further information contact: Abby Shinhmar, Governance Officer 
Tel:020 8937 2078; Email: abby.shinhmar@brent.gov.uk 

 

For electronic copies of minutes and agendas please visit: 
Council meetings and decision making | Brent Council 

 

Public Document Pack

https://brent.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://www.brent.gov.uk/the-council-and-democracy/council-meetings-and-decision-making


 

2 
 

Notes for Members - Declarations of Interest: 
 

If a Member is aware they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business, 
they must declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes 
apparent and must leave the room without participating in discussion of the item.  
 

If a Member is aware they have a Personal Interest** in an item of business, they must 
declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent. 
 

If the Personal Interest is also a Prejudicial Interest (i.e. it affects a financial position or 
relates to determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission, or registration) then 
(unless an exception at 14(2) of the Members Code applies), after  disclosing the interest to 
the meeting the Member must leave the room without participating in discussion of the item, 
except that they may first make representations, answer questions or give evidence relating 
to the matter, provided that the public are allowed to attend the meeting for those purposes. 
 
*Disclosable Pecuniary Interests: 
(a)  Employment, etc. - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 

for profit gain. 
(b)  Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect expenses in 

carrying out duties as a member, or of election; including from a trade union.  
(c)  Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between the 

Councillors or their partner (or a body in which one has a beneficial interest) and the 
council. 

(d)  Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 
(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or longer. 
(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in which the 

Councillor or their partner have a beneficial interest. 
(g)  Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place of 

business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the securities 
exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or of 
any one class of its issued share capital. 

 

**Personal Interests: 
The business relates to or affects: 
(a) Anybody of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management, 
and: 

 To which you are appointed by the council; 

 which exercises functions of a public nature; 

 which is directed is to charitable purposes; 

 whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or policy (including a 
political party of trade union). 

(b) The interests a of a person from whom you have received gifts or hospitality of at least 
£50 as a member in the municipal year;  

or 
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting, to a 
greater extent than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the 
electoral ward affected by the decision, the well-being or financial position of: 

 You yourself; 

 a member of your family or your friend or any person with whom you have a close 
association or any person or body who employs or has appointed any of these or in 
whom they have a beneficial interest in a class of securities exceeding the nominal 
value of £25,000, or any firm in which they are a partner, or any company of which 
they are a director 

 any body of a type described in (a) above. 



 

3 
 

Agenda 
 

Item Page 
 

1 Apologies for Absence and clarification of alternate members  
 

 

 For the Committee to note any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2 Declarations of Interests  
 

 

 Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, the nature 
and existence of any relevant disclosable pecuniary or personal interests 
in the items on this agenda and to specify the item(s) to which they relate. 
 

 

3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

1 - 12 

 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting held on Tuesday 5 
September 2023 as a correct record. 
 
(Agenda republished to include the attached minutes on 25 September 2023) 

 

 

4 Matters Arising (if any)  
 

 

 To consider any matters arising from the minutes of the previous meeting.  
 

 

5 Barham Park Trust Annual Report and Accounts 2022/23  
 

13 - 28 

 This item presents the annual report for the Barham Park Trust for 
2022/23. There is a statutory requirement to produce an Annual Report, 
including the Accounts each financial year. 
 

 

 Ward Affected: 
Wembley 
Central 

 Contact Officer: Jekaterina Popova, Head of 
Finance 
Tel: 020 8937 1463 
Jekaterina.Popova@brent.gov.uk 
 

 

6 Exclusion of the Press & Public  
 

 

 No items have been identified in advance of the meeting that will require 
the exclusion of the press and public. 
 

 

7 Any Other Urgent Business  
 

 

 Notice of items to be raised under this heading must be given in writing to 
the Head of Executive and Member Services or her representative before 
the meeting. Any decisions taken urgently under this heading must 
comply with the provisions outlined in paragraph 39 of the Council’s 

 



 

4 
 

Access to Information Rules (part 2 of the Constitution). 
 

 
Date of the next meeting:  To be Advised 
 

 Please remember to set your mobile phone to silent during the meeting. 

 The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 
members of the public.  Alternatively it will be possible to follow 
proceedings via the live webcast HERE 
 

 

https://brent.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 
MINUTES OF THE BARHAM PARK TRUST COMMITTEE 

Held in the Conference Hall, Brent Civic Centre on Tuesday 5 September 2023 at 
10.00 am 

 
PRESENT: Councillor M Butt (Chair) and Councillors Donnelly-Jackson, Farah & 
Krupa Sheth. 

 
Also Present: Councillors Georgiou and Lorber. 

 
1. Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair for 2023-24  

 
RESOLVED to confirm the appointment of Councillor Muhammed Butt as Chair and 
Councillor Tatler as Vice-Chair of the Trust Committee for the 2023-24 Municipal 
Year. 
 

2. Apologies for Absence and clarification of alternate members  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Mili Patel (with Councillor 
Harbi Farah attending as alternate member) and Councillor Tatler. 
 

3. Declarations of Interests  
 
Councillor Donnelly-Jackson declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 7 Barham 
Park Strategic Property Review as a Trustee of Actionspace who were an art based 
Charity supporting emerging and established artists with learning disabilities that 
had used studio space provided through ACAVA (one of the tenant organisations in 
the Barham Park building). 
 
No other declarations of interest were made at the meeting. 
 

4. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the previous meeting held on Monday 5 September 
2022 be agreed as a correct record, subject to the following correction: 
 

 Reference to Friends of Barham Park Library being amended to read Friends 
of Barham Library. 

 
5. Matters Arising (if any)  

 
None. 
 

6. Public Representations  
 
Prior to consideration of the main agenda Councillor Muhammed Butt (as Chair) 
advised the Trust Committee that he had accepted a number of requests to speak 
at the meeting from representatives of tenant organisations occupying the Barham 
Park building updating the Trust Committee on the work being undertaken through 
their organisations supported through use of the building. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Barham Park Trust Committee - 5 September 2023 

 
Each representative was then invited to address the meeting with the following 
comments highlighted. 
 
Lorna Gemmell (representing ACAVA) was the first to address the Trust Committee 
stating that the charity had been running affordable artist studios and community 
arts programmes for many years and was currently supporting over 400 artists and 
creative organisations.  ACAVA had been a tenant in the Barham Park building for 
over 9 years with a number of art studios located within the building.  There are 
currently renovations underway in the community studio space to make ready for a 
new arts programme commencing in Autumn.  In concluding, the Trust Committee 
were asked to ensure meaningful consultation was undertaken with all tenant 
organisations with regard to any proposals for future development of the Barham 
Park building. 
 
Following on from the representations made by ACAVA, Jane Ryan (as a local 
artist using a studio provided through ACAVA) spoke about a persistent intruder to 
the building and the nuisance and security concerns being caused to users of the 
community spaces as a result, which she was keen to seen addressed in a co-
ordinated way and as part of any security enhancements to the building. 
 
Chris Murray then spoke (representing the Young Brent Foundation) in order to 
highlight the work of the charity and support the concerns raised in relation to 
security of the Barham Park building, given issues being caused by the same 
individual referred to by Jane Ryan in persistently gaining illegal access to the 
property.  Highlighting a number of incidents and impact this was having in limiting 
current use of the building due the safety concerns he supported the request for a 
co-ordinated approach to be developed in tackling the security concerns and 
individual identified. 
 
Mr J M Patel (representing Barham Park Veterans Club) was then invited to speak.  
In highlighting the work of the club and links to the local community support was 
also sought in securing accessible access and the ongoing maintenance of the 
building. 
 
As a further contribution, Shivakumar Gurung (representing Tamu Samaj UK) 
highlighted the work of the organisation and range of activities and educational 
programmes being offered for all sections of the local community with the request 
made for the Trust Committee to consider an extension of their lease to further 
support development and use of the facility. 
 
As a final contribution, Francis Henry (representing Friends of Barham Library) 
began by seeking clarification and further detail on the potential impact relating to 
the outcome of the Feasibility Study and Strategic Property Review and plans to 
engage with current tenants within the Barham Park building.  Prior to enabling him 
to proceed further, Councillor Butt (as Chair) paused the meeting to remind Mr 
Henry of the scope of the representations being sought by the Trust Committee 
which related to an update on the work being undertaken by each organisations 
supported through use of the Barham Park building rather than any other matters 
due to be considered on the agenda.  In expressing concern at what he felt to be 
the limited scope of the representations Mr Henry used the reminder of the time 
available to highlight the work and activities being delivered through the Library and 

Page 2



Barham Park Trust Committee - 5 September 2023 

its value to the local community, which he felt needed to be recognised as part of 
any wider development proposals due to be considered during the meeting. 
 
In noting the comments raised, Councillor Muhammed Butt thanked everyone who 
had spoken for their participation and advised that the issues raised would be 
responded to as appropriate during the remainder of the meeting. 
 

7. Barham Park Trust Annual Report and Accounts 2022/23  
 
Councillor Muhammed Butt (as Chair) advised the Trust Committee that due to an 
issue needing to be resolved in relation to the presentation of the Barham Park 
Trust Accounts this item had been withdrawn from the agenda. 
 
In providing further details, Chris Whyte, Director of Environment & Leisure, advised 
that as a result of an issue identified with the version of the Charity Commission 
template which had been used to present the Trust Accounts the need had been 
identified for the accounts to be resubmitted on the basis of a revised and updated 
template.  In order to enable final consideration, it was therefore confirmed that the 
Trust Accounts for 2023-24 would be resubmitted to an additional meeting of the 
Trust Committee, which would be scheduled to take place prior to the end of 
September 2023. 
 

8. Barham Park Strategic Property Review  
 
Chris Whyte (Director of Environment & Leisure) supported by Denish Patel (Head 
of Property) introduced a report providing an update on the Barham Park Strategic 
Property Review, including the position regarding the restrictive covenant relating to 
776-778 Harrow Road.  In introducing the report, the Trust Committee noted: 
 

 The appointment, following the Trust meeting on 27 January 2022, of an 
architect, Rider Levett Bucknall (RLB), who had been commissioned to 
prepare a feasibility study on design options to address the issues identified in 
relation to the infrastructure and condition of the Barham Park Estate.  The 
study had been commissioned in order to provide a more holistic review of 
options towards the Estate’s infrastructure & maintenance given the wider 
impact on its effective operation and running costs. 
 
The report detailed the outcome of the feasibility study, including the key 
elements of the initial concept, proposed design and high-level cost estimates 
with the options designed to focus on the renovation and potential 
reconfiguration of the existing old court buildings.  The Trust Committee were 
advised that in undertaking the study the aim had been to look at options that 
whilst cost-effective would not only preserve the historically significant parts of 
the structure but also enhance the overall relationship between the building 
and park and enable the development of upgraded and adaptable facilities, 
new spaces and modern facilities to reflect market demand and trends with 
respect to a wide variety of sustainable community uses.  In recognising the 
current position relating to the configuration and maintenance of the existing 
building, the Trust Committee were advised that the feasibility study had 
resulted in three different design options being identified, as summarised in 
section 3 of the report.  Whilst the bronze option had been discounted early in 
the design process due to the insufficient value identified, details on the Silver 

Page 3



Barham Park Trust Committee - 5 September 2023 

and Gold feasibility options had been set out within Appendices 2 and 3 of the 
report, which at this stage it was noted had been provided for initial feedback 
and to show what might be possible. 
 
In considering the update provided the Trust Committee was advised of the 
additional work that would be required to develop the options for further 
consideration, which would include identification of the necessary capital 
investment required (estimated at between £300-400k) and consultation and 
engagement with both statutory and non-statutory consultees, including 
existing tenants and other relevant stakeholders in the park.  In supporting the 
need for a full engagement and consultation process, the Trust Committee 
were advised this would be undertaken once the necessary investment 
strategy had been identified and that pending this, there would be no impact 
on the occupation of existing tenants arising from the feasibility study. 

 

 The details provided within Appendix 3 of the report (classified as containing 
exempt information) on the independent valuation that had been 
commissioned on behalf of the Trust (following the decision taken by the Trust 
Committee on 1 September 2021) as part of the process in seeking to explore 
the possibility of reaching an agreement to vary the restrictive covenant 
relating to redevelopment of the site of the two residential dwellings at 776 
and 778 Harrow Road which was owned by a single private owner on a 
freehold basis.  The independent valuation had been obtained in order to 
establish the market value opinion of varying the covenant for the benefit of 
the Trust, with the owner seeking an amendment to the terms of the restrictive 
covenants having obtained planning permission to develop the site involving 
the demolition of the two existing dwellings and construction of 4 new three 
storey dwellinghouses on the same site.  In recognising the level of concern 
on the proposed development, The Trust Committee were advised that any 
final decision relating to the varying of the restrictive covenant would be a 
matter for the Trust to consider having taken account of the wider 
considerations alongside the potential value of any financial benefit and 
opportunity provided to reinvest the proceeds back into the Estate (as a 
permanent endowment) that could be used to support the development of a 
multi-faceted investment strategy for the wider refurbishment project.  The 
Trust Committee were therefore being asked, at this stage, only to consider 
the way forward in order to progress consideration of the matter. 

 

 As a final update, the Trust Committee were provided with an update on the 
decision made at its meeting on 27 January 2022 not to enter new leases in 
respect of Units 2, 7 and 8 of the Estate pending the completion and 
consideration of the strategic property options appraisal.  In recognising the 
varying nature of the existing tenancy arrangements for those tenants in 
occupation the Trust Committee were advised of the need to work through the 
feasibility and design options identified in order to consider their potential 
impact on the current occupation, uses, leases and tenancies of the Estate, 
prior to the Trust being in a position to offer any new tenancies or lease 
renewals.  Officers were therefore recommending that the current status quo 
be maintained, with the letting/lease renewal of units 2, 7 and 8 being held in 
abeyance pending the viability in progressing the design options identified as 
part of the feasibility study having been further assessed and developed 

Page 4



Barham Park Trust Committee - 5 September 2023 

alongside a detailed Business Case to support any whole Estate 
development. 

 
Having thanked officers for the updates provided the Chair then invited comments 
and questions from members of the Trust Committee, with the following issues 
raised: 
 

 In relation to the outcome of the strategic property feasibility study and design 
options identified further details were sought on the potential mix of units and 
uses that had been referred to as possible recommended interventions for any 
remodelled mixed-use Estate along with the plans to ensure current tenants 
were included as part of future consultation and engagement as the proposals 
were assessed and developed. 

 
In response, Chris Whyte (Director of Environment & Leisure) assured the 
Trust Committee of the plans to engage and consult tenants in seeking to 
develop the proposals but advised this would need to be undertaken once a 
further and more detailed assessment on the viability in progressing the 
options had been completed and the necessary investment had been 
identified as available to support a meaningful Business Plan and scheme.  In 
terms of the potential mix of units, The Trust Committee were advised this 
would need to be consistent with the aims of the Trust and overall fabric of the 
building, including supporting the financial sustainability of the Estate with the 
initial concept focussed around smaller independent socio-economic and 
enterprise units. 

 

 In seeking to further clarify the extent of the development proposals for which 
planning permission had been granted in relation to the two residential 
dwelling on the site at 776 and 778 Harrow Road, confirmation was provided 
that the permission granted did not extend beyond the boundary of the 
existing combined site.  Further clarification was provided that the restrictive 
covenant also related to development on the same site with the existing 
owner, having obtained planning permission, now seeking the consent 
required to amend that restrictive covenants to enable the development of the 
combined plot to progress. 

 

 In view of the security concerns highlighted during the representations made 
by tenant organisations at the start of the meeting, further details were sought 
on the measures in place to address the specific issues identified.  In 
response Amin Soorma (Estate Surveyor, Property Services) and Leslie 
Williams (Project Manager) outlined the measures being taken to engage with 
the individual identified as causing the issues and also with the police and 
Council’s Community Safety Team in order to ensure a co-ordinated multi-
agency approach was developed towards tackling and preventing the ongoing 
nuisance, disturbance and harassment being experienced.  Whilst measures 
had been taken to prevent access and deter the individual, problems were still 
being experienced, with further security enhancements being considered 
including the use of security bars on windows and possible extension of CCTV 
coverage, although it was recognised that these additional measures would 
require the identification of the necessary funding. 

 

Page 5



Barham Park Trust Committee - 5 September 2023 

As no further issues were raised the Chair thanked officers for the update and it 
was RESOLVED, having noted the exempt information contained in Appendix 3 of 
the report and on the basis of the discussion at the meeting: 
 
(1) To note the outcomes from the architect’s feasibility study commissioned by 

the Council on behalf of the Trust, as detailed within the report. 
 
(2) To delegate authority to the Director for Environment and Leisure Services in 

consultation with the Chair of the Trust Committee to: 
 
(a) Obtain detailed costings of the preferred option presented in the architect’s 

report including a cost/benefit analysis and financial appraisal of the proposed 
scheme. 

 
(b) Undertake detailed analysis of the legal risks associated with the proposed 

scheme and the means as to their mitigation and management. 
 
(c) Prepare a draft investment strategy to establish the Council’s ability to fund 

the refurbishment proposal and prepare an outline delivery plan for 
consideration by the Trust. 

 
(3) To agree for the Director for Environment and Leisure Services in consultation 

with the Chair of the Trust Committee to report back the findings and 
recommendations to the next available Trust Committee (following the 
additional meeting being arranged to consider the Trust Accounts), outlining 
the suggested interventions, the amount of funding required to deliver the 
whole Estate option being recommended by RLB, and the potential financial 
options that would enable delivery of the scheme.   

 
(4) To agree to hold in abeyance the letting/lease renewal of units 2, 7 and 8 until 

such time as the Director for Environment and Leisure Services has 
considered the viability of progressing the proposed scheme, with an update 
being provided at the next available Trust Committee. 

 
(5) Agree for the Director for Environment and Leisure Services in consultation 

with the Chair of the Trust Committee to negotiate in principle the variation of 
the restrictive covenant in respect of 776 and 778 Harrow Road for the best 
terms that can reasonably be obtained, subject to final approval by the Trust 
Committee, and any approval required by the Charity Commission under the 
Charities Act 2022 and 2011. 

 
9. General Update Report  

 
Leslie Williams (Projects Officer, Parks Service) introduced the report providing an 
update on operational issues at Barham Park along with current progress on a 
range of projects. 
 
Members were then provided with operational updates in relation to the following 
issues: 
 

 The welcome resumption of the full range of activities in the tenanted units 
within the Barham Park building following the pandemic, with officers (on 

Page 6



Barham Park Trust Committee - 5 September 2023 

behalf of the Trust) having held their annual meeting with occupiers to review 
matters associated with the building and the park in February 2023. 

 Park events – as detailed within section 3.3 of the report, with members 
having noted and welcomed the enhanced range of events successfully 
hosted within the Park including Irvin’s Fun Fair, a range of events being 
hosted through Barham Library including health and wellbeing activities and 
support for people with dementia, Brent Let’s Grow (a training event for young 
people organised by Young Brent Foundation), Wellness Wonder and other 
Health related walks and activities along with a number of religious and 
cultural festivals. 

 Security and anti-social behaviour - as detailed within section 3.4 of the report, 
with the Trust Committee noting (following the discussion under the previous 
item) the crime, nuisance and disorder from various sources continuing to 
cause disturbance and harassment to occupiers and to park users.  In addition 
to the previous concerns regarding break-ins by an individual at the building, 
other recent issues had involved individuals climbing onto the flat roof of the 
Barham Park building, motorbike riding within the park and graffiti (which had 
been cleaned by the Council’s grounds maintenance team) along with littering, 
with the Trust Committee keen to ensure that work being undertaken to 
address the issues identified on a co-ordinated and multi-agency basis was 
progressed and the Council’s Cabinet Member for Safer Communities & 
Public Protection also kept updated on further developments and action. 

 Public Space Protection Orders – as detailed in section 3.5 of the report with 
the Trust Committee advised of the revised PSPO and signage introduced in 
April 2023 which included a prohibition for nuisance vehicles.  

 Rough sleeping with the Park - as detailed in section 3.6 of the report, with 
members noting the ongoing work being undertaken with StreetLink and St 
Mungo’s to address the issue and support those individuals sleeping rough to 
access accommodation and other assistance according to their needs.  
Members were advised that the east side recessed porch area of the Barham 
Park building had been used by one or more persons sleeping rough during 
the year and as a result gated access had now been installed in order to 
restrict the access to that area and ensure its use only for access to the 
building. 

 Thames Water works – as detailed within section 3.7 of the report.  Whilst now 
completed, members noted the complex nature of the works which had 
needed to be undertaken which had resulted in the need for some follow up 
works related to the public surface water system in the vicinity of the railway 
line. 

 General operational works – Members noted the change in the contractor 
appointed to undertake operational grounds maintenance works which, with 
effect from 1 August 2023, had changed from Veolia to Continental 
Landscapes Ltd. 

 Grass and meadows - with members noting the continued progress and 
improvements being made to the range of grasslands and associated wildlife 
within the park, as detailed within section 3.9 of the report and welcoming its 
contribution to the Council’s wider biodiversity and climate change activities. 

 
In addition to the operational issues identified above, members also received 
updates in relation to the following specific issues: 
 

Page 7



Barham Park Trust Committee - 5 September 2023 

 The progress being made in relation to works previously approved through the 
Trust’s Restricted Funds, as detailed within section 3.11 – 3.15 of the report.  
These included the works being undertaken to maintain trees across the 
Estate and to upgrade windows and the exterior of the Barham Park building.  
In terms of the windows, planning consent had now been obtained for a 
revised mix of wood window frames on the key public-facing elevations with 
UPVC frames to be used elsewhere, which had been designed to achieve 
energy and carbon-emissions savings in a more cost-effective way and on 
which a procurement process was now underway to source.  The Trust 
Committee were also advised of the works undertaken in relation to the events 
Field drainage involving the introduction of a maintenance technique that 
introduced aeration, relieved compaction and could provide near to the 
surface drainage while a longer-term solution was sought. 

 The progress in relation to the funding of other works associated with 
tree/other planting and maintenance of open woodland, the Queen Elizabeth II 
Silver Jubilee Garden (including additional planting undertaken by the 
Community Library in the central “well” feature), the rebuild of the wooden 
pergola and further restoration works to the Walled Garden Pool as detailed 
within section 3.16 – 3.19 of the report. 

 
As no further issues were raised, Councillor Muhammed Butt (as Chair) thanked 
officers along with tenant organisations, volunteers and users of the park for their 
efforts in supporting the maintenance and management of the park and facilities 
given their importance as a community asset with the Trust keen to ensure a co-
ordinated approach was maintained in seeking to secure the long-term use of the 
Trust’s assets for the benefit of the local community. 
 
As no further issues were raised it was RESOLVED to note the issues set out in the 
report along with the co-ordinated multi-agency approach being developed to 
address the security concerns which had been identified during the meeting. 
 

10. Review of Alternative Administration and Governance Models  
 
Biancia Robinson (Senior Constitutional Lawyer) introduced the report setting out 
for review, in accordance with recommended good practice by the Charity 
Commission, the governance and management options available for the Barham 
Park Trust Committee. 
 
In considering the report, the Trust Committee were reminded that the Charity 
Commission considered it good practice for the Trust to periodically review its 
governance and management arrangements and whether it was felt to remain in 
the best interest of the charity for the local authority to remain as trustee. Previous 
reviews had been undertaken in 2015 and 2018 when it had been decided to 
maintain the status quo and it was now considered timely to undertake a further 
review. 
 
In terms of the current governance and management arrangements, the Committee 
were reminded of the original terms under which the Trust had been established 
with the land held by the Council as sole trustee and only available for use in 
furtherance of the Trust’s stated charitable purpose.  The Council was therefore 
ultimately responsible for the management and administration of the Trust acting in 
the best interests of the Trust and its beneficiaries.  As part of these arrangements 

Page 8



Barham Park Trust Committee - 5 September 2023 

the Council had generally met the costs of managing, maintaining developing and 
running the Park, supplemented by rental income and interest on capital along with 
any additional grant funding obtained.  In practical terms this has meant the Trust 
receiving a subsidy from the Council with the Trust’s funds managed and accounted 
for separately to those of the Council.  The Trust Committee was also reminded of 
the fundamental limitations with the land held for recreational purposes, no express 
power of sale in the conveyance nor for the Council to acquire Barham Park for 
assimilation into its property portfolio without permission of the Charity Commission 
or Court. 
 
Having noted the background and context provided to the current management and 
administration of the Trust, the Committee then moved on to consider the various 
options identified for review in relation to its future management and governance 
arrangements.  The options identified were as follows with the Trust Committee, in 
considering each option, having noted the further detail provided as set out in 
section 4 of the report: 
 

 Option 1: Maintaining the status quo 

 Option 2: Appoint additional trustees alongside the Council 

 Option 3: Appoint a Corporate Trustee 

 Option 4: Establish a new corporate charity to take on ownership and control 
of Barham Park; and 

 Option 5: Outright transfer to another charity 
 
In welcoming the comprehensive overview of the options provided and recognising 
the potential impact on future operation of the Trust, the Committee’s attention was 
also drawn to additional written representations submitted in advance of the 
meeting by a local resident (Mr Philip Grant) in relation to Option 2 and the potential 
to establish a Trust Advisory Committee consisting of independent members 
including some nominated by local community groups and Barham Park users to 
support the Trust Committee in its role and formal management arrangements. 
 
Having considered the options available, the Trust Committee indicated they were 
minded to support Option 1: Maintaining the status quo as an outcome of the review 
and preferred way forward, recognising the longer term financial stability for the 
Trust offered through the current governance arrangements and flexibility provided 
in terms of the powers and support available from the Council in seeking to 
preserve and maintain the unique status of the Park. 
 
Having thanked officers for the overview provided the Chair then invited comments 
and questions from members of the Trust Committee, with the following issues 
raised: 
 

 Further details were sought on the potential options under the existing 
governance arrangements to encourage wider engagement with key 
stakeholders and park users on the future management of the Park.  In 
valuing the role of organisations such as Friends of Park Groups and the 
ongoing dialogue with tenants on operational issues relating to the Barham 
Park building the Trust Committee advised they would be keen to explore in 
more detail the potential establishment of a wider consultation mechanism to 
engage with key stakeholders (including park users, local community 

Page 9



Barham Park Trust Committee - 5 September 2023 

representatives and existing tenants) on issues relating to the ongoing 
management of the park and its facilities. 

 
Having considered the detailed options available for the future governance of the 
Barham Park Trust, it was therefore RESOLVED: 
 
(1) To approve Option 1 (Maintain the Status Quo) as the ongoing governance 

model to conduct the management arrangements for the Trust. 
 
(2) on the basis of (1) above, to agree and confirm that it continues to be in the 

best interest of the charity for the local authority to remain as trustee. 
 
(3) That officers be requested to explore the potential establishment of a wider 

consultation mechanism to engage users of the park and the local community 
representatives, alongside other key stakeholders such as tenant 
organisations, on issues relating to the ongoing management of the park and 
its facilities. 

 
11. Review of Barham Park Trust Governance Document  

 
Biancia Robinson (Senior Constitutional Lawyer) introduced the report setting out 
proposed updates to the Barham Park Trust Governance and Guidance Document.  
The Trust Committee noted that the Governance and Guidance Document set out 
the responsibilities of the Council as Trustee along with the Charity’s purposes and 
how the Trust was to be administered.  The proposed amendments, whilst mainly 
administrative in nature had been designed to reflect changes following an 
organisational restructure within the Council and updated guidance issued by the 
Charity Commission, as detailed within section 3.3 of the report. 
 
In supporting the proposed amendments identified, Councillor Muhammed Butt (as 
Chair) also took the opportunity to highlight the importance and comprehensive 
nature of the training which had provided for all members of the Trust in support of 
their role and responsibilities. 
 
As no further issues were raised it was RESOLVED to approve the amendments to 
Trust Governance and Guidance Documents as set out in Appendix A of the report, 
subject to reference to Environmental and Leisure Services being corrected to 
Environment and Leisure. 
 

12. Exclusion of the Press & Public  
 
There were no items that required the exclusion of the press or public. 
 

13. Any Other Urgent Business  
 
No items of urgent business were raised at the meeting, with members noting that 
further meetings of the Trust Committee would be arranged as required during the 
year in order to progress the various actions identified during the meeting. 

 
 
 
 

Page 10



Barham Park Trust Committee - 5 September 2023 

The meeting was declared closed at 11.20m 
 
COUNCILLOR MUHAMMED BUTT 
Chair 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

 
Barham Park Trust Committee 

26th September 2023 

Report from Director of Environment 
and Leisure 

ANNUAL REPORT AND ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2022-2023 

 

 

Wards Affected:  Sudbury 

Key or Non-Key Decision:  Non-key 

Open or Part/Fully Exempt: 
(If exempt, please highlight relevant paragraph of 
Part 1, Schedule 12A of 1972 Local Government 
Act) 

Open 

No. of Appendices: 

Three 
Appendix 1: Annual Report of the Barham Park 

Trust to the Charity Commission for 
the 2022/23 financial year; 

Appendix 2: Accounts of the Barham Park Trust 
for the 2022/23 financial year; 

Appendix 3: Independent Examiner’s Review of 
the accounts of the Barham Park 
Trust for the 2022/23 financial 
year. 

Background Papers:  None 

Contact Officer(s): 
(Name, Title, Contact Details) 

Jekaterina Popova, Head of Finance, Finance, Finance 
and Resources Department.  
E-mail: Jekaterina.Popova@brent.gov.uk 
Tel: 020 8937 1463 

 

1 Purpose of the Report 

 
1.1 This report presents the annual report for the Barham Park Trust for 2022/23.  There 

is a statutory requirement to produce an Annual Report, including the Accounts each 
financial year. 

2 Recommendation 

 
 For the Barham Park Committee to:- 
 

2.1 Approve the Annual Report and Barham Park Trust’s Accounts for 2022/23. 
 
2.2 Note the Independent Examiner’s Review of Barham Park Trust’s Accounts for 

2022/23. 
 Page 13

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Jekaterina.Popova@brent.gov.uk


2.3 Authorise officers to update the Charity Commission with the Annual Report and the 
Accounts for 2022/23 of Barham Park Trust. 

 
2.4 Consider options for the examination of annual accounts in the future and approve 

to proceed with the recommended Option 1. 
 

3 Detail 

 
Annual Accounts for 2022/23 
 

3.1 It has been revealed that the correct up-to-date Charity Commission accounts 
template has not been used to prepare Barham Park Trust’s accounts. An 
evaluation has also been conducted to assess whether the accruals accounts 
template or the receipts and payments template is more appropriate for the Trust. 
The receipts and payments template was deemed to be more appropriate due to its 
more concise format and the size of the Trust. This template also provides a clear 
picture of the charity's activities and financial position whilst aiding readability and 
interpretation. Annual accounts for 2022/23 have therefore been prepared on a 
receipts and payments basis using the current template provided by the Charity 
Commission. There was no impact on the Trust’s financial position as a result of this 
change. 

 
3.2 The Trust’s accounts form part of Brent Council’s group accounts and for the 

purpose of consolidation need to be prepared on accruals basis initially and then 
adjusted to a receipts and payments basis. The Council’s accounts are audited by 
an external audit firm who provide an assessment of whether the accounts give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority. 

 
3.3 Officers have also contacted the Charity Commission to obtain confirmation that this 

approach is satisfactory and that no further actions are required to satisfy the Charity 
Commission reporting requirements. A response has not been received at the date 
of despatch of this report.  

 
3.4 A number of further improvements are planned for 2023/24 to make financial 

reporting more efficient and transparent. A new bank account is planned to be 
opened for the Trust so that its funds are held separately from the Council in an 
interest-bearing account. Any arrangements and transactions with the Council will 
be reviewed and actioned via bank transfers. 

 
Examination of Annual Accounts 

 
3.5 The Charity Commission has set a threshold below which independent audit of 

financial statements is not required. For England and Wales this was set at either 
gross income exceeding £1,000,000 or gross income exceeding £250,000 and 
gross assets exceeding £3,260,000. As Barham Park Trust falls below this 
threshold, there is no requirement for the financial statements to be independently 
audited. The Trust therefore has the option to either: 

 
Option1: Continue with the current arrangement for independent examination by the 
Head of Audit and Investigation, or  

 
Option 2: Commission an external accountancy firm to carry out the audit. This will 
attract additional costs that are estimated to be between £3k and £4k. 

 
Page 14



3.6 Taking into account the size of the Trust and process improvements planned for 
2023/24 to simplify the accounts and aid their interpretation, it is recommended that 
Option 1 is agreed. 

 
Annual Report for 2022/23 

 
3.7 The annual report is set out for consideration by the Committee. It outlines the work 

undertaken on behalf of the Trust during the year, which included the repair and 
improvement works on the park and ongoing work to secure tenants for the various 
buildings on the site. 

 
3.8 As stated in paragraph 3.5, as Barham Park Trust falls below the threshold set by 

the Charity Commission, there is no requirement for financial statements to be 
independently audited. Therefore, an Independent Examiner’s Report is an 
accepted way for smaller charities to present their accounts as allowed for by the 
Charities Act 2011. 

 
3.9 The accounts have been subject to an independent examination by the Head of 

Audit and Investigation. The Independent Examiner’s Report is attached to this 
report and is set out in Appendix 3. There were no recommendations raised.  
 

3.10 In 2022/23 the Trust incurred costs of £66,586 on maintenance of the building 
complex and the park, which was funded from the income generated in-year. The 
Trust generated £91,607 income from funfairs, rental charges and interest earned, 
including a £27,092 cash advance from the Council.  

 
3.11 As at 31 March 2023, the Trust had a rental debtor of £39,625 and a £12,533 

payment that was due but not yet paid. These have been recognised as debtors and 
creditors on the Council’s side and the Council gave a net £27,092 cash advance to 
the Trust in order to aid the Trust’s cashflow position and avoid a detrimental effect 
of outstanding debt on the Trust’s financial position. In 2022/23 the cash advance 
has been reported on a separate line in the income section to aid transparency.  The 
Council has also paid interest to the Trust on the cash advance. The Trust continues 
liaising with tenants and expects all arrears to be cleared by March 2024. 

 
3.12 The Trust has achieved a surplus of £25,021, net of receipts and payments, and 

increased its total cash funds. As at 31 March 2023, the Trust had £222k in 
unrestricted funds and £353k in restricted funds. 

3.13 Following approval by the Trust Committee, the annual report and accounts for 
2022/23 will be submitted to the Charity Commission – the deadline for submission 
is 31st January 2024. In practice the documents are submitted shortly after the Trust 
committee meeting. 

 
Comparison between 21/22 and 22/23 

 
3.14 Overall expenditure has increased by £5,481 when compared to last year. This is 

predominantly because additional one-off costs have been incurred to commission 
a feasibility study to consider the use of the Barham Park building and its condition 
in the long-term. 

 
3.15 Total income shows a reduction of £31,992, which is largely due to rental income 

received in advance in the previous financial year which related to rental periods in 
2022/23. 

 
Page 15



 Restricted funds 
 

3.16 The restricted funds balance as at 31st March 2023 remains at £353,152. In order 
for the restricted funds to be spent, this expenditure needs to be approved by both 
the Committee and the Charity Commission. The Committee needs to be satisfied 
that the proposed use of the restricted funds is in accordance with the terms of the 
Trust. 

 

4 Financial Considerations 

 
4.1 Financial implications are included in the body of the report.  

5 Legal Considerations 

 
5.1 In accordance with the Charities Act, the Trust Committee must ensure that 

accounting records are kept in respect of the charity which are sufficient to show 
and explain all the charity's transactions and prepare a statement of accounts. 

 
5.2 If a charity's gross income in any financial year does not exceed £250,000, the 

charity trustees may, in respect of that year, elect to prepare — (a) a receipts and 
payments account, and (b) a statement of assets and liabilities, instead of a 
statement of accounts. 

 
5.3 An independent audit of financial statements is required if the charity's gross income 

in that year exceeds £1 million, or the charity's gross income in that year exceeds 
£250,000 (the accounts threshold) and at the end of the year the aggregate value 
of its assets (before deduction of liabilities) exceeds £3.26 million. 

 
5.4 Where those thresholds do not apply and the Charities gross income in a financial 

year exceeds £25,000, the accounts of the charity for that year must, be examined 
by an independent examiner, and that independent person can be someone who is 
reasonably believed by the trustees to have the requisite ability and practical 
experience to carry out a competent examination of the accounts. 

6 Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Considerations 

 
6.1 None.  
 

7 Consultation with Ward Members and Stakeholders 

 
7.1 None. 

 

8 Human Resource/Property Considerations  

 
8.1 None 
 
Appendix 1: Annual Report of the Barham Park Trust to the Charity Commission for the 
2022/23 financial year;  
Appendix 2: Accounts of the Barham Park Trust for the 2022/23 financial year; 
Appendix 3: Independent Examiner’s Review of the accounts of the Barham Park Trust 
for the 2022/23 financial year. 

Page 16



 

Report sign off:   
 
Chris Whyte 
Director for Environment and Leisure 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



TAR 1 March 2019 

 Trustees' Annual Report for the period 
 

From 

Period start date 

To 

Period end date 

Day 
01 

Month 
04 

Year 
2022 

Day 
31 

Month 
03 

Year 
2023 

 

Section A                        Reference and administration details 
 
 

Charity name  Barham Park Trust 

 

Other names charity is known by Barham Park Trust 

 

Registered charity number (if any)  302931  
 

Charity's principal address  
 
Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way 

Wembley 

Middlesex 

Postcode HA9 0FJ 
 

 Names of the charity trustees who manage the charity 

 Trustee name Office (if any) 
Dates acted if not for whole 
year 

Name of person (or body) entitled 
to appoint trustee (if any) 

1 
London Borough of 
Brent 

Barham Park Trust 
Committee 

 Not applicable as corporate 
sole trustee 

2     

3     

4     

5     

6     

7     

8     

9     

10     
 

Names of the trustees for the charity, if any, (for example, any custodian trustees) 

 

Name Dates acted if not for whole year 

  

  

  

Names and addresses of advisers (Optional information) 

Type of adviser Name Address 

   

   

   

   

Name of chief executive or names of senior staff members (Optional information) 

 

 
Page 19



TAR 2 March 2019 

 Section B              Structure, governance and management  
 

Description of the charity’s trusts 

Type of governing document     
(eg. trust deed, constitution)  

The voluntary conveyance dated 22 October 1936 between George Titus 
Barham (1) and Wembley UDC (2) copy annexed. 
 
Related documents 

 The conveyance dated 1st February 1937 between Florence 
Elizabeth Barham (1) and the Mayor Alderman and Burgesses of 
the Borough of Wembley (2) copy annexed 

 The Assent dated 1st February 1938 between James Williamson 
and Kenneth Ewart Tansley (1) and the Mayor Alderman and 
Burgesses of the Borough of Wembley (2) copy annexed. 

How the charity is constituted  
(eg. trust, association, company) 

 
London Borough of Brent as sole trustee 

Trustee selection methods  
(eg. appointed by, elected by) 

 
Not applicable – the Council as local authority is the sole trustee. The 
London Borough of Brent is statutory successor to the Borough of 
Wembley. 

Additional governance issues (Optional information)  

You may choose to include 
additional information, where 
relevant, about: 

 policies and procedures 
adopted for the induction and 
training of trustees;  

 the charity’s organisational 
structure and any wider 
network with which the charity 
works; 

 relationship with any related 
parties; 

 trustees’ consideration of 
major risks and the system 
and procedures to manage 
them.  

 

 
 
 

Page 20



TAR 3 March 2019 

 

Section C                    Objectives and activities 
 

Summary of the objects of the 
charity set out in its 
governing document 

The land is be held on trust to preserve the same for the recreation of the 
public in such manner and subject to such regulations in all respects as 
the Council may from time to time think proper. 

Summary of the main 
activities undertaken for the 
public benefit in relation to 
these objects (include within 
this section the statutory 
declaration that trustees have 
had regard to the guidance 
issued by the Charity 
Commission on public 
benefit) 

 
The benefit is the provision of Barham Park and building for recreational 
purposes. 
 
Members of the Barham Park Trust Committee received training in July 
2022 and this included a wide range of information including governance, 
conflicts of interest and public benefit.  
 
 

Additional details of objectives and activities (Optional information)  
 

You may choose to include 
further statements, where 
relevant, about:  

 policy on grantmaking; 

 policy programme related 
investment;  

 contribution made by  
volunteers.  

 
During the year of 2022-23, activities including those of community 
tenants returned to a more typical pattern following the Covid-19 
pandemic. Several organisations organised activities and events, both 
within the Barham Park building and using the park. 
 
The park of Barham Park recontinued as one of the most visited parks 
within the Brent area. The park includes a range of features including a 
Walled Garden, other gardens, trees and open woodland, amenity 
grassland and a meadow, a children’s playground and an outdoor gym. 
 
The park hosted a Fun Fair on two occasions, guided walks and healthy 
walking activities. A Remembrance Day event was held in November 
2022.  
 
Working with the Council, Brent Council’s Property Services and Parks 
Service continued to work to progress operational issues, and to prepare 
capital projects towards commissioning both for the buildings and for the 
park.  
 
One of those projects is a strategic review of the use of the building to 
look at opportunities to improve the quality of the accommodation and 
income generation. 
 
Following the earlier works to re-landscape the Queen Elizabeth II 
Jubilee Garden, planting was conducted during the winter of 2022/23. 
Twenty standard-sized trees were planted in an open woodland. A low 
wall was restored. These works were funded by grants provided by Brent 
Council. 
 

 

Page 21



TAR 4 March 2019 

Section D                      Achievements and performance 
 

Summary of the main 
achievements of the charity 
during the year  

 

The Barham Park Trust continued to maintain Barham Park for visitors 
from local areas of Brent and from elsewhere. The Barham Park building 
hosted tenants of community organisations. The Park and building 
hosted several events. Barham Park also provides a range of 
landscaping and biodiversity.  
 
Restoration work continued on several features in the park, while the 
Barham Park Trust is conducting a review of the building and how best to 
maintain the building into the future.  

 

Page 22



TAR 5 March 2019 

Section E                    Financial review  
 

Brief statement of the 
charity’s policy on reserves   

As at 31 March 2023 the charity held cash reserves of £575,183.  
Out of this total sum of £575,183, the sum of £222,031 relates to 
unrestricted funds and the sum of £353,152 relates to restricted funds. 
There was no expenditure from the Trust’s restricted funds in the 2022/23 
financial year up to 31 March 2023.  
 
 
In accordance with the decision of the trustees any future receipts will be 
used for improvements within Barham Park. 

Details of any funds materially 
in deficit 

 

Further financial review details (Optional information) 

You may choose to include 
additional information, where 
relevant about: 

 the charity’s principal 
sources of funds (including 
any fundraising);  

 how expenditure has 
supported the key objectives 
of the charity;  

 investment policy and 
objectives including any 
ethical investment policy 
adopted.  

 

 
 

Section F                     Other optional information 
 

 

 
 

Section G                    Declaration 
The trustees declare that they have approved the trustees’ report above.  
 
Signed on behalf of the charity’s trustees 

Signature(s)  
 

Full name(s) Chris Whyte 
 

Position (eg Secretary, Chair, 
etc) 

Director for Environment and 
Leisure: Officer with delegated 
authority to deal with day to day 
trustee functions of the Trust.  
 

 

 

Date  
 

 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Section A Receipts and payments
Unrestricted 

funds
Restricted funds Endowment funds Total funds Last year

 to the nearest      £ to the nearest £ to the nearest £ to the nearest £ to the nearest £

A1 Receipts 
Hall Hire, Fun Fair & Ice Cream Concessions -                               -                               -                               

Property Rental Income -                               -                               3,089                           

Ad-hoc lettings -                               -                               14,625                         

Fun Fair 36,337 36,337                         28,172                         

Car Parking -                               -                               -                               

Catering Rights -                               -                               -                               

Rental Income - Virgin Media 4,875 4,875                           6,500                           

Rental Income - Other 1,625 1,625 50,009                         

Brent Council Contribution -                               -                               -                               

Children Centre 11,300 11,300                         11,300                         

Interest earned 10,378 10,378                         9,903                           

Cash Advance 27,092 27,092                         -                               

-                               -                               -                               

Sub total (Gross income for AR) 91,607 -                                   -                                   91,607                         123,599                       

A2 Asset and investment sales, (see table).
-                                   -                                   -                                   -                               -                                   

-                               -                                   -                                   -                               -                                   

Sub total -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   

Total receipts 91,607                      -                                -                                91,607                      123,599                    

A3 Payments
Maintenance and Wardens 55,375                         55,375                         54,438                         
Premises - Utility -                               -                               -                               
Premises - Insurance 2,500                           2,500                           2,500                           
Premises - Security -                               -                               700                              
Premises - Cleaning -                               -                               -                               
Premises - Repairs and Maintenance -                               -                               -                               
Premises - Other -                               -                               -                               
Supplies and Services -                               -                               -                               
Waste Disposal -                               -                               -                               
Trees - felling and planting -                               -                               -                               
Machinery Repairs -                               -                               -                               
FM running Costs -                               -                               -                               
NNDR -                               -                               -                               
Surveys -                               -                               -                               
Consultancy 8,711                           8,711                           -                               
General contingency -                               -                               3,467                           

-                               -                               

Sub total 66,586                         -                                   -                                   66,586                         61,105                         

A4 Asset and investment purchases, (see table)
-                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Buildings Refurbishment -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

Sub total -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   -                               

Total payments 66,586                      -                                -                                66,586                      61,105                      

Net of receipts/(payments) 25,021                      -                                -                                25,021                      62,494                      

A5 Transfers between funds -                                -                            -                            -                               -                            

A6 Cash funds last year end 197,010                    353,152                    -                            550,162                    487,668                    

Cash funds this year end 222,031                    353,152                    -                                575,183                    550,162                    

Section B Statement of assets and liabilities at the end of the period

Categories
Unrestricted 

funds 
Restricted funds Endowment funds 

to nearest £ to nearest £ to nearest £

222,031                       353,152                       -                               

-                               -                               -                               

-                               -                               -                               

222,031                    353,152                    -                            

OK OK OK

Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted funds Endowment funds 

to nearest £ to nearest £ to nearest £

-                               -                               -                               

-                               -                               -                               

-                               -                               -                               

CC16a
Barham Park 302931

Receipts and payments accounts
For the period from

Period start date
To

Period end date

01/04/2022 31/03/2023

Charity Name No (if any)

B2 Other monetary assets

Details 

B1 Cash funds Cash

Total cash funds 

(agree balances with receipts and payments account(s))

Details

Page 25



Fund to which asset 
belongs

Cost (optional)
Current value 

(optional)
-                               -                               

-                               -                               

-                               -                               

Fund to which asset 
belongs

Cost (optional)
Current value 

(optional)
Endowment fund 939,071                       

Fund to which liability 
relates

Amount due (optional) When due (optional)

-                               

-                               

-                               

Signed by one or two trustees on behalf of all the trustees Date of approval

B5 Liabilities

Signature Print Name

Details

Details

B4 Assets retained for the charity’s own use Barham Park Building Complex

Details

B3 Investment assets

Page 26



Barham Park Trust 

2022-23 Accounts: Supplementary Audit Review 

 

1 Introduction 

1.1 The Audit and Investigations Service (A&I) were asked to act as an independent 
examiner and review the draft Barham Park Trust (“the Trust”) 2022-23 accounts 
which will be submitted to the Charities Commission.  

2 Respective responsibilities of trustees and examiner 

2.1 The charity's trustees are responsible for the preparation of the accounts. The 
charity's trustees consider that an audit is not required for this year under section 
144(2) of the Charities Act 2011 (the 2011 Act) and that an independent 
examination is needed. 

2.2 It is my responsibility to: 

- Examine the accounts under section 145 of the 2011 Act; 

- Follow the procedures laid down in the general Directions given by the 
Charity Commission under section 145(5)(b) of the 2011 Act; and  

- to state whether particular matters have come to my attention. 

3 Basis of independent examiner’s report 

3.1 This examination has been carried out in accordance with the general directions 
given by the Charities Commission. An examination  

3.2 An independent examination is a form of external scrutiny that provides a limited 
check on specific matters. This limited form of check contrasts with an audit. The 
examiner is only required to confirm whether any material matters of concern 
have come to their attention, whilst a full audit is required to provide an opinion 
on whether a charity’s accounts give a ‘true and fair view’. An examination is 
therefore a limited form of scrutiny compared to an audit. It provides less 
assurance in terms of the depth of work which is to be carried out and is limited 
as to the matters on which the examiner reports. 

3.3 An examination involves a review of the accounting records kept by the charity 
and a comparison of the accounts presented with those records. It also involves 
a review of the accounts and the consideration of any unusual items and/or 
disclosures provided. The examiner must also consider whether any matters of 
concern have come to the examiner’s attention as a result of the independent 
examination that should be included in their report to enable a proper 
understanding of the accounts to be reached. The procedures undertaken 
therefore do not provide all the evidence that would be required in an audit and 
consequently no opinion is given as to whether the accounts present a “true and 
fair view” and the report is limited to those matters set out in the statement below. 

4 Independents Examiner’s statement 

4.1 Officers acting for the trustees have prepared receipts and payments accounts.  

 

Page 27



4.2 No matter has come to my attention, which gives me reasonable cause to believe 
that, in any material respect, the requirement: 

 To keep accounting records in accordance with section 130 of the 
Charities Act; and 

 To prepare accounts which accord with the accounting records and 
comply with the accounting requirements of the Charities Act have not 
been met, or 

 To which, in my opinion, attention should be drawn in order to enable a 
proper understanding of the accounts to be reached. 

 

Darren Armstrong – Head of Internal Audit and Investigations at London Borough of 
Brent 

Relevant professional qualification or body: Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors 
(CMIIA, CIA) 

Brent Civic Centre, Audit & Investigations, Floor 5, Engineers Way, HA9 0FJ 

 

15 September 2023 

Page 28


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Barham Park Trust Annual Report and Accounts 2022/23
	5a. Appendix 1 Barham Park Trust Committee Annual Report 2022-2023
	5b. Appendix 2 Barham Park Accounts 2022-23_CC16a
	5c. Appendix 3 Barham Park Trust - Supplementary Audit Review 2022-23


